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Ullico’s mission is to protect labor while maximizing 

shareholder value through the delivery of products and 

services for the union workplace. In 2014, focused  

efforts to increase profitability and reduce operating  

expenses resulted in positive momentum. Through a  

series of strategic decisions, the organization experienced 

strong financial performance. Ullico is committed to its 

purpose, which last year’s progress has made clear.

To position Ullico for a positive trajectory in 2015 and the future,  
major steps have been taken during the last year, which included:

• The creation of a private healthcare exchange structured for the labor market

• Developed increased fiduciary liability insurance limits through the partnership with 

Alterra America Insurance Company, a Markel company

• Robust new lending for real estate projects through Separate Account J

• Additional new projects within the Ullico Infrastructure Fund, LP
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2014 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

$7
MILLION

REDUCED ONGOING  
OPERATING EXPENSES  
BY APPROXIMATELY

18.4%
I N C R E A S E

$11.6
MILLION
IN NET INCOME

IN 2014

REPORTED 

INCREASED  
BOOK VALUE  
PER SHARE  
AT DEC. 31, 2013

$10.75 TO $12.73
 AT DEC. 31, 2014
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90%

RETENTION 
OF CURRENT 
BUSINESS

$25
MILLION
OF NEW STOP LOSS

PREMIUMS

NEARLY

100
N E W 

CLIENTS

$100
MILLION
ANNUAL PREMIUMS
STOP LOSS PROGRAM

RECORD

TO PROVIDE THEIR GROUP LIFE 
OR STOP LOSS INSURANCE
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Life & Health

The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union Labor Life) 

experienced solid growth in its insurance lines in 2014. The 

company reached this milestone by retaining more than 90% 

of current group business while cultivating new business. 

Nearly 100 new clients chose Union Labor Life to provide 

their group life or stop loss insurance in 2014.

Requirements in the Affordable Care Act have challenged many organizations with  

self-funded health care plans. Two of the most significant for unions are the removal of  

annual claim limits and the removal of lifetime coverage maximums. 

In response to these challenges, Union Labor Life created a Stop Loss Group Dividend Plan. 

This program, which has been endorsed by five international unions, offers policyholders the 

opportunity to earn dividends based on annual premium volume and claim experience. Since 

the program’s inception, Union Labor Life returned dividends of more than $2 million to 

participating health and welfare funds.

In 2014, Union Labor Life wrote $25 million in new stop loss premiums. Overall, the  

company generated a record $100 million in annual premiums for its stop loss program. 

Staying true to its mission, Union Labor Life’s medical stop loss coverage provides the labor 

movement with a vital solution.
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Property and Casualty

Ullico Casualty Group, Inc. (UCG) reached a 

milestone in 2014. For the first time in its  

history, UCG exceeded $50 million in written  

premiums for its professional liability lines.

After UCG transitioned fully to a Managing General Agency platform in 2013, 

the unit achieved success through its trim, nimble business model. The 

unit’s steady growth was accomplished by a 97 percent retention of current  

business while generating $5.1 million in new business. 

UCG’s sound underwriting expertise and attentiveness to brokers is comple-

mented by the unit’s ongoing partnership with Alterra America Insurance 

Company, a Markel company. The book of business experienced low loss 

ratios while providing quality coverage for fund trustees and union leaders 

across the country.

UCG’s commercial lines experienced steady growth in 2014, with $3.4  

million in written premiums. UCG offers products on behalf of two A rated 

carriers while working to create the best platform for union workplace policy-

holders, benefit plan fiduciaries, and their brokers. 
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97%

RETENTION 
OF CURRENT 
BUSINESS

$50
MILLION
WRITTEN PREMIUMS  

IN PROFESSIONAL
LIABILITY LINES

$3.4
MILLION
WRITTEN PREMIUMS  
IN COMMERCIAL 
LINES

$5.1
MILLION
N E W 
BUSINESS

RECORD
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$300
MILLION

APPROXIMATELY
GREW

ASSESTS UNDER 
MANAGEMENT

AUM
TO REACH $3.6 

BILLION

LOANS
30 INVESTED

MORE THAN

J FOR JOBS
CLOSED 
MORE THAN $1.36 

BILLION

INFRASTRUCTURE
INVESTED NEPTUNE REGIONAL 

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM
$75 
MILLION
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Investment Services

Ullico’s Investment Services division offers investment 

products and services specifically designed for institutional 

investors. These investment products are offered by The 

Union Labor Life Insurance Company and Ullico Investment 

Advisors, Inc. and sold through the Ullico Investment  

Company, Inc. (Member FINRA/SIPC). During calendar year 

2014, assets under management grew approximately $300 

million to reach $3.6 billion.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT J
Ullico’s real estate debt products, including its flagship Separate Account J (J for Jobs) are 

managed within Union Labor Life by the Real Estate Investment Group. 

Since their inception, our real estate investment products have provided more than $14.3 

billion in loan financing. In 2014, the funds closed more than 30 loans for $1.36 billion, 

including projects in Baltimore, Chicago, Los Angeles, New York City, and Portland, Ore.

INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
Responding to investment needs for the nation’s infrastructure, the Ullico Infrastructure 

Fund, L.P. was established in 2010 to assist in the construction, maintenance and refur-

bishment of America’s infrastructure. The fund’s investment goal is to achieve risk-adjusted 

returns with significant annual cash yield and relatively low volatility. Its first investments 

included a water and wastewater treatment facility and a wind energy plant. 

In 2014, Ullico announced the closing of an approximately $75 million investment in the 

Neptune Regional Transmission System, a high-voltage direct-current submarine transmission 

cable connecting New Jersey and Long Island, New York. Ullico ended 2014 with a commitment 

to close a $58 million investment in the first quarter of 2015. 
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The Ullico Infrastructure Fund and the units issued will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or under state securities laws. Investment in infrastructure is speculative, 
not suitable for all investors, and should be undertaken only by experienced and sophisticated investors who are willing to bear the high risks of such an investment, which include, but are not limited to, lack of liquidity, restrictions on transferring 
ownership to the Fund, absence of information regarding valuation and pricing, and high fees and expenses. Potential investors in the Fund should carefully read the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum for a description of the potential 
risks associated with investment in the Fund.

Separate Account J will only be sold to US pension and profit-sharing plans that meet the qualifications of Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC), annuity plans which meet the requirements for the deduction of the employers’ 
contribution under IRC section 402(a)(2), or subject to certain conditions, governmental plans as defined in the IRC Section 414(d).  Investment in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the 
potential inability of an investor to redeem units.  The investment return and principal value of the Fund will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original cost. In addition, fluctuations in interest 
rates and market volatility may limit available financing for real estate investments held by the Fund, thereby adversely affecting the value of the underlying investments, the investment return and the liquidity of the investments. Furthermore, 
the loan values determined by Union Labor Life could vary significantly from the prices at which the investments would sell because market prices can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller. The ability of borrowers 
to repay loans issued by the Fund will typically depend upon the successful construction or operation of the related real estate project and the availability of financing. The repayment of loans issued for the construction of multifamily housing (i.e 
condominium loans) will generally depend on the borrower’s ability to sell the underlying housing units. There is no guaranteed that Union Labor Life will attain its investment objectives. Potential investors in the Fund should carefully read the 
Fund Disclosure Memorandum for a description of the potential risks associated with investment in the Fund.
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Supporting the 
American Labor 
Movement

The American labor movement plays an 

important role in sustaining communities 

and helping them flourish. Founded 

and owned by labor, Ullico supports the 

movement with investment and insurance  

solutions for the union workplace. It also gives 

back by supporting philanthropic causes.  

In 2014, Ullico teamed with more than 50 

organizations dedicated to making the nation 

a better place for working Americans.
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EDUCATION:

American Architectural  
Foundation

Arthur Coia Scholarship &  
Education Fund

Connell F. Smith/ Homer Brown  
Scholarship Fund

Economic Policy Institute

I Can Read!

Illinois Labor History Museum

Institute for Labor Studies  
and Research

James R. Hoffa Memorial  
Scholarship Fund

John M. Evans Scholarship

Mikva Challenge 

OPCMIA Scholarship Fund

Paul Simon Institute –  
SIU Foundation

Ryan Griffin Memorial  
Scholarship Foundation

Scott Thomas Palmer Memorial  
Scholarship

Sheet Metal Workers’ International 
Scholarship Foundation

MILITARY VETERANS:

Folds of Honor

Helmets to Hardhats

Yellow Ribbon Fund

HEALTH & WELLNESS:

American Cancer Society

Arizona Myeloma Network

Faces of Our Children

Family Counseling Center Inc.

Labor of Love – Diabetes Research 
Institute

Laborers C.A.R.E.

Larger than Life

Multiple Sclerosis Walk

Porshard Foundation for  
Abused Children

St. Jude’s Children

Tigerlily Foundation

Prevent Child Abuse Kentucky

Two Rivers Child Advocacy Center

UA Charitable Trust – Mayo Clinic

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION:

American Friends of Yitzak Rabin

American Ireland Fund

Athletes for Life

City Craft Foundation

City of Rialto – 8th Annual the  
State of Women Event

Chicago Federation of Labor & Industrial 
Union Council – Solidarity Labor Day

Construction Industry  
Workers Charitable

DC Friends of Ireland

Gene Slay’s Boys Club of St. Louis

Helmets to Hardhats Toys for Tots

IBEW Local 134 Helping Hands

Illinois Women’s Institute  
for Leadership

Instituto Laboral de la Raza

Southern Illinois Central Labor  
Council Annual Food Drive

Southern Illinois University

Special Olympics Illinois

The Jewish Labor Committee

The PATCH Foundation

Union Sportsmen’s Alliance

Western Works Labor  
Heritage Festival

Working Theater

WORKERS’ RIGHTS:

Alliance for Retired Americans

International Labor Rights Forum

Interfaith Worker Justice

Jobs with Justice

National Alliance for Fair Contracting

New Jersey Alliance for Action

Peggy Browning Fund

Working America

Workers Defense Project

ULLICO PROUDLY SUPPORTS MANY LABOR AND  
COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS, INCLUDING: 
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Focused. Strategic. Committed.

Our company moved forward in 2014, with steady and solid gains in 

every sector, effective cost-containment initiatives that continue to 

provide benefits, and a renewed commitment to focused, strategic 

growth in 2015.

Edward M. Smith            Joseph J. Hunt
President & Chief Executive Officer            Chairman of the Board

As we move ahead, we are committed to continuing the growth of Separate Account J, ‘J for Jobs,’ with smart 

real estate investments that provide competitive returns for your benefit funds, while putting your members 

to work and making their communities stronger. 

We are focused on building an even stronger infrastructure fund by offering solutions to localities struggling 

with how to rebuild deteriorating essential infrastructure.  Investment opportunities in this niche market can 

offer solid returns, create good union jobs and strengthen our communities.

We are dedicated to being a crucial partner for union health care funds struggling to adapt to the Affordable 

Care Act through our stop loss product, which has boosted Ullico’s bottom line. This value-added product – 

along with the launch of a private healthcare exchange exclusively for union members and their families – has 

strong prospects in 2015 and beyond.

We will maintain the steady growth, careful underwriting and operational excellence of the property and 

casualty division and its union and fiduciary liability products. 

In the 88th year of our company, we are proud to be moving forward. On behalf of our dedicated Board of 

Directors and our senior leadership team, we congratulate each and every shareholder who continues to make 

the Ullico story possible.
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AND PROCEDURES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

Management of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over finan-

cial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive 

and financial officers and effected by the Company’s board of directors, management and other 

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally ac-

cepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepara-

tion of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized ac-

quisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as 

of December 31, 2014, based on the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal 

Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 

Treadway Commission (2013 framework). Based on such evaluation, management has con-

cluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of Decem-

ber 31, 2014. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has 

been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, as stated in their 

report, which appears herein.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON DISCLOSURE CONTROLS  
AND PROCEDURES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014

The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material 

information relating to the Company, including its subsidiaries, is made known to the officers 

responsible for financial reporting, other members of senior management and to the board 

of directors. Based upon their evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure 

controls and procedures, the principal executive and financial officers have concluded that 

such disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the information required 

to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 

appropriate time periods. 

The Company intends to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of its disclosure 

controls and procedures on an ongoing basis. The Company intends to make all necessary 

improvements in controls and procedures and correct any deficiencies that may be discov-

ered in the future in order to ensure that senior management has timely access to all material 

financial and non-financial information concerning the Company’s business. While the pres-

ent design of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures is effective to achieve these 

results, future events affecting the Company’s business may cause management to modify 

its disclosure controls and procedures.

Edward M. Smith David J. Barra
President & Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President 
 Chief Financial Officer
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 

Ernst & Young LLP
2005 Market Street
Suite 700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Tel: +1 215 448 5000
Fax: +1 215 448 4069
ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors 

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Ullico Inc. 

We have audited Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Ullico Inc. and 
subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and 
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting as of December 31, 2014. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our 
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit standards generally accepted in the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria. 



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 

Page 2

We also have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, the 
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the consolidated financial statements of Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries, and our report dated April 
23, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

April 23, 2015 



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 

Ernst & Young LLP
2005 Market Street
Suite 700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Tel: +1 215 448 5000
Fax: +1 215 448 4069
ey.com

Report of Independent Auditors 

Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Ullico Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.  

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated 
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 

Page 2

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

We also have audited, in accordance with the audit standards generally accepted in the United States, the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated April 23, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Report of Other Auditors on 2013 Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements of Ullico Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2013, 
were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on April 25, 2014. 

April 23, 2015 



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands)

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

 ASSETS 

 Fixed maturity and debt securities, at fair value (amortized cost of $281,478 and $270,999) $               298,319 $                282,159

 Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 7,531 7,558

 Mortgage loans, held for investment 19,961 21,401

   Total Investments $               325,811 $                311,118

 Cash and cash equivalents                    39,921                    37,624

 Accrued investment income                          2,863                          2,842

 Premiums, accounts and notes receivable 14,637 15,475

 Reinsurance recoverable 26,513 25,143

 Property and equipment 5,364 4,446

 Goodwill, net 3,230 3,205

 Deferred policy acquisition costs 26,865 26,531

 Current income tax recoverable 140 1,411

 Deferred income tax  - -

 Other assets 8,307 8,043

 Separate account assets 2,991,805 2,463,764

 TOTAL ASSETS $            3,445,456 $             2,899,602
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

 LIABILITIES 

 Policy and claim reserves: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $            185,279 $          177,921

   Property and casualty 13,495 4,238

 Deposit-type annuity contracts 61,851 64,053

 Policyholder funds on deposit 4,472 4,272

 Policyholder dividends payable 2,461 1,559

 Unearned and advance premiums 11,172 10,212

   Total Policy Liabilities 278,730 262,255

 Accounts payable and other liabilities 28,608 41,103

 Reinsurance balances payable 9,129 8,154

 Accrued pension and other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) 20,702 25,938

 Separate account liabilities 2,991,805 2,463,764

TOTAL LIABILITIES $         3,328,974 $       2,801,214

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

 Capital stock ($25 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; issued and 6,284 6,284

   outstanding 251,351 at 12/31/14 and 12/31/13) 

 Class A common stock, voting ($1 par value; 20,000,000  shares authorized; 8,148 8,148

   issued and outstanding 8,148,483 at 12/31/14 and 12/31/13) 

 Class B common stock, nonvoting ($1 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 753 753

   issued and outstanding 753,485 at 12/31/14 and 12/31/13) 

 Additional capital paid-in 190,524 190,524

 Accumulated other comprehensive income:

   Unrealized investment gains, net of deferred tax 10,947 7,256

   Pension/OPEB liability adjustment, net of deferred tax 5,779 3,009

   Accumulated other comprehensive income 16,726 10,265

 Retained deficit (105,953) (117,586)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $            116,482 $            98,388

TOTAL LIABILITIES and STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $         3,445,456 $       2,899,602
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF INCOME
 (in thousands)

Years Ended

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

INCOME

 Premium income: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $                135,092 $               132,985

   Property and casualty 23,910 9,535

 Fee based income 48,238 48,348

 Net investment income 11,426 12,593

 Net realized gains 2,688 1,311

 Other income 2,793 1,635

TOTAL INCOME $                224,147 $               206,407

BENEFITS and EXPENSES

 Life, accident and health and annuities 99,966 104,451

 Interest credited to policyholder account balances 1,473 2,206

 Losses and loss adjustment expenses - property and casualty 10,453 4,306

 Policyholder dividends 2,077 1,591

   Total policy benefits and claims expenses 113,969 112,554

 Commissions 24,337 22,209

 Sales, general and administrative expenses 74,341 85,150

 Net change in deferred acquisition costs (334) (1,887)

 Taxes, licenses and fees 3,683 4,967

TOTAL BENEFITS and EXPENSES $               215,996 $               222,993

Net income/(loss) from continuing operations before federal and state income taxes 8,151 (16,586)

 Income tax (expense)/benefit 3,482 (3,684)

Net income/(loss) from continuing operations 11,633 (20,270)

Discontinued Operations (Note 15)

Gain on deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty, net of tax - 34,746

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax - 10,708

Net income from discontinued operations - 45,454

NET INCOME $                 11,633 $              25,184
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(in thousands)

Years Ended

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013   

Net income   $        11,633   $         25,184    

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:

   Unrealized holding gains/(losses) arising during the period, net of $2,534 and $(5,769) of tax          4,704 (10,712)

 Reclassification adjustment for unrealized gains on securities included in net gain/loss, 
 net of $(545) and $(6,977) of tax (1,013) (12,958)

   Change in unrealized gain/(loss) on securities, net of $1,989 and $(12,746) in tax 3,691 (23,670)  

   Change in pension/OPEB liability, net of $1,491 and $1,399 in tax           2,770               2,598

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax           6,461            (21,072)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $        18,094  $           4,112  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Shares Capital Stock
Class A  

Common Stock
Class B  

Common Stock

Balance, January 1, 2013 9,153  $             6,284 $             8,148 $               753 

Balance, December 31, 2013 9,153 $             6,284 $             8,148 $               753

Balance, December 31, 2014 9,153  $             6,284  $             8,148  $               753

Additional  
Capital Paid-In

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income Retained Deficit Total

Balance, January 1, 2013 $         190,524  $   31,337 $      (142,770)  $        94,276

Net income 25,184        25,184

Change in unrealized gain on investments, net (23,670) (23,670)

Change in pension/OPEB liability, net 2,598       2,598

Total comprehensive gain      4,112

Balance, December 31, 2013   $         190,524  $           10,265 $       (117,586)  $             98,388

Net income 11,633 11,633

Change in unrealized gain on investments, net 3,691 3,691

Change in pension/OPEB liability, net 2,770 2,770

Total comprehensive gain 18,094

Balance, December 31, 2014   $         190,524 $           16,726 $      (105,953) $          116,482
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF CASH FLOWS  
(in thousands)

Years Ended

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $                     11,633 $                          25,184
Less: Net income from discontinued operations                                     - 45,454
Net income/(loss) from continuing operations 11,633 (20,270)
Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities:

  Interest credited to policyholder account balances 1,314 1,702
  Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 13,349 14,268
  Capitalization of deferred policy acquisition costs    (13,683)    (16,155)
  Amortization & depreciation expense 2,068 2,106
  Deferred income taxes     (1,989)     5,208
  Realized gains on investments, net                             (2,688) (1,311)
 (Gains)/losses on limited partnership investments, net (145) (118)

  Change in premiums & other receivables        838                             (2,275)
  Change in reinsurance recoverable/payable (395) 2,314
  Change in policy liabilities 18,477 13,485 
  Change in accounts payable and other liabilities (14,961) 6,002
  Change in current income tax recoverable/payable 1,271 (2,450)
  Other, net 220 (2,250)
Cash provided by operating activities – continuing operations 15,309 256
Cash used in operating activities – discontinued operations                                       - (2,255)
Cash provided by/(used in) operating activities                           15,309 (1,999)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales & maturities of investments:

  Fixed maturity and debt security sales                       53,087                       58,806
  Fixed maturity and debt security maturities                        34,550                        34,445
  Mortgage loans                                 1,599                                 2,336
  Limited partnerships                            172                            140
Purchases of investments:

  Fixed maturities and debt securities                     (95,958)                     (50,670)
  Mortgage loans                             (159)                             (9,698)
  Limited partnerships                                            -                                  (1,016)    
Purchases of property & equipment                            (2,986)                            (511)
Cash (used in)/provided by investing activities – continuing operations  (9,695) 33,832
Cash used in investing activities – discontinued operations                                        - (24,331)
Cash (used in)/provided by investing activities   (9,695) 9,501

Cash flows from financing activities:

  Investment product deposits 8,527 8,624
  Investment product withdrawals   (11,844)   (27,020)

Cash used in financing activities – continuing operations (3,317) (18,396)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 37,624 48,518
Net change in cash 2,297 (10,894)

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $                    39,921 $                         37,624
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 1---Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ullico Inc., a privately held specialty insurance and investments holding 
company serving the union workplace, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ullico” or “the Company”).  Ullico’s primary wholly owned subsidiaries include The 
Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”), Ullico Casualty Group, Inc. (“UCG”), Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) and Ullico Investment 
Company, Inc. See “Recent Results of Operations” below.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make es-
timates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates due to a number of factors, including changes in the level of 
mortality, morbidity, interest rates, asset valuations, experience development, claims frequency and severity trends and changes in market conditions and 
such differences could occur in the near term.  

Nature of Operations
Union Labor Life was founded in 1925 by the officials of the American Federation of Labor to provide low cost insurance protection to union members and 
their collectively bargained union benefit plans. Ullico Inc. was formed in 1987 to facilitate the restructuring of the insurance subsidiaries and to enable the 
Company to expand its investment services capabilities through non-insurance subsidiaries.  Ownership of Ullico’s stock is generally restricted to interna-
tional and national trade unions, their members, their members’ benefit funds, the Company’s pension plan and directors and officers of the Company.

The activities of the Company cover a broad range of insurance and financial products and services provided principally to labor unions, their members and 
employers of union members, including life and health insurance, property and casualty insurance, investment advisory services, asset management and 
mortgage banking and servicing activities.  

Recent Results of Operations
Ullico Casualty Company (“Ullico Casualty”) was incorporated in May 1979, headquartered in Washington, D.C. and domiciled in the state of Delaware.   Ul-
lico Casualty wrote insurance policies and reinsured policies in numerous states for Workers’ Compensation, Surety, Professional Liability, Commercial Auto, 
Commercial Multi-Peril and other lines of business.     

During 2012 and 2011, the Company generated significant losses, primarily from its property and casualty subsidiary, Ullico Casualty.  The losses arose 
primarily in non-core businesses which were  terminated during those years.  However, the products issued through these programs continued to generate 
losses through 2012. On March 11, 2013, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the “Court”) issued a Rehabilitation and Injunction Order for the 
purpose of appointing a Receiver and rehabilitating Ullico Casualty.  On May 16, 2013, the Receiver filed a petition for the entry of a Liquidation and Injunc-
tion Order. The Liquidation and Injunction Order was entered by the Court on May 30, 2013. Ullico Casualty’s results through March 11, 2013 are included in 
the 2013 consolidated statement of operations of the Company as discontinued operations.  The assets and liabilities of Ullico Casualty have been decon-
solidated effective March 11, 2013 and are not included in the 2013 consolidated balance sheet of the Company.  The Company recognized an after-tax gain 
of $34.7 million in 2013 due to the deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty.  

The Company no longer has control of Ullico Casualty and, as a result of the Rehabilitation and Injunction Order and the Liquidation and Injunction Order 
previously mentioned, is no longer involved in the operations or financial reporting of Ullico Casualty. Ullico Casualty is not a related party to the Company 
after deconsolidation.  See Note 15, “Discontinued Operations.”

The Company has taken numerous steps since late 2012 to change its property and casualty business model so that its core products that serve the union 
marketplace are marketed with a new carrier partner supported by the Company’s managing general agency subsidiary, UCG. The aforementioned orders do 
not affect UCG’s business model for future operations.  

The property and casualty continuing lines amounts in the 2014 and 2013 consolidated statement of income represent the results of UCG and Ullico Labor 
Captive, IC (“Labor Captive”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Union Labor Life. In 2013, UCG completed the implementation of its managing general agency 
model and established a partnership with Alterra America Insurance Company (“Alterra”), a subsidiary of Markel American Insurance Company (“Markel”), to 
provide quality professional liability coverage for fund trustees and union leaders across the country. Labor Captive assumes a risk share in this partnership.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 2---Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Invested Assets
Fixed maturity and debt securities are designated “available for sale” and are reported at fair value.  The fair value of fixed maturity securities is based upon 
independent market quotations.  Other than securities that are other than temporarily impaired, changes in fair value of securities designated as available 
for sale, net of deferred income taxes, are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly have no effect on net income.  Cash 
received from maturities and pay downs is reflected as a component of proceeds from sales and maturities of investments in the statements of cash flows.

Limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations are recorded in accordance with the equity method of accounting.  

Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, less impairment reserves.  For mortgage loans considered impaired, a specific reserve is estab-
lished.  Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect amounts due according to the contractual 
terms of the loan agreement.  When a mortgage loan has been determined to be impaired, a reserve is established for the difference between the unpaid 
principal of the mortgage loan and its fair value.  Fair value is based on the lower of either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at 
the mortgage loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral.  Changes in the mortgage valuation reserves are reflected in realized 
gains or losses.  

Cash equivalents include money market funds and other investments whose maturities at the time of acquisition were ninety days or less and are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Declines in the fair value of invested assets below cost are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment losses. The portfolio of investments is reviewed 
on a quarterly basis to determine if an other-than-temporary decline in value has occurred.  The decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative 
criteria and qualitative information.  A number of items factor into the “impairment” decision including, but not limited to:  (a) materiality and length of 
unrealized loss; (b) the financial condition of the issuer; (c) the business plan and trend of the issuer; (d) general market conditions and industry or sector 
specific factors; (e) interest rate environment and (f) whether the Company intends to sell or thinks it is more likely than not it will be required to sell the 
security prior to recovery.  

If the fair value of a fixed maturity security declines in value below the Company’s amortized cost and the Company intends to sell or determines that it will 
more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, management considers the security to be other than temporar-
ily impaired and reports its decline in fair value as a realized investment loss in the consolidated statement of income as the difference between carrying 
value and fair value.  If, however, the Company does not intend to sell the security and determines that it is not more likely than not that it will be required 
to do so, declines in the fair value are considered, in the judgment of management to be other than temporary are separated into the amounts representing 
credit losses and the amounts related to other factors.  Amounts representing credit losses are reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated 
statement of income and amounts related to other factors are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the 
related income tax benefit.  The amount of credit loss is determined by discounting the security’s expected cash flows at its effective interest rate at the time 
of acquisition.  Declines in the fair value of all other investments, with the exception of mortgage loans noted above, that are considered in the judgment of 
management to be other than temporary are reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated statement of income.

Premium, Accounts and Notes Receivable
Premiums, accounts and notes receivable consist primarily of accrued premiums receivable from the Company’s insurance customers.  Premiums, accounts 
and notes receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, and are periodically evaluated for col-
lectability based on past payment history and current economic conditions.

Concentration and Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration and credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents, investments and 
accounts receivable.  Investments are diversified through many industries and geographic regions through the use of investment managers who employ 
different investment strategies.  The Company limits the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution and believes that no significant con-
centration of credit risk exists with respect to cash and investments.  The premiums receivable balances are generally diversified due to the distribution of 
policyholders across many states.  The Company also has receivables from reinsurers.  Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations 
to its policyholders.   Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company.  The Company periodically evaluates the financial 
condition of its reinsurers and in certain cases, requires collateral from its reinsurer to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolven-
cies.  Management’s policy is to review all outstanding receivable balances as well as bad debt write-offs experienced in the past and establish an allow-
ance for doubtful accounts, if deemed necessary.  See Note 9, Reinsurance, for additional details on concentration and credit risk related to the Company’s 
reinsurance programs.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Policy and Claim Reserves and Policyholder Contract Deposits
Life and health insurance products consist principally of group insurance policies.  Most of the Company’s group life and health insurance policies are 
participating.  Therefore, in addition to guaranteed benefits, they pay dividends, as declared annually by the Company based on its experience.  The group 
life and health insurance claim reserves are based on projections of historical claim development.  The policy reserves, as related to life and health products, 
are based on assumptions for mortality and morbidity, utilizing interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 6.0%. 

Investment-type annuity products consist of single premium annuity contracts.  Annuity reserves consist principally of liabilities for group pension funds that 
are deposited on behalf of groups to provide immediate and future retirement benefits to group members.

Policy reserves and policyholder contract deposits on annuity and universal life insurance products are determined following the retrospective deposit 
method and consist of policy account values that accrue to the benefit of the policyholder, based on guaranteed rates stated in the policy contract, before 
deduction of surrender charges.

The reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance policies include estimates for losses and claims reported prior 
to the balance sheet date, estimates of claims incurred but not reported based on projections of historical loss developments with consideration given to 
the risk share arrangements with agents and underwriters that are expected to result in losses that trend below general industry results, and estimates 
of expenses for investigating, defending and adjusting all incurred and unadjusted claims. Actual amounts could differ from these estimates if these as-
sumptions do not occur as expected. Reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in the current period consolidated 
statement of income.

Fee Based Income
Fee based income consists primarily of revenue generated from administrative services, investment management fees charged to Separate Accounts and 
third parties and managing general agency fees.  Investment management fees were approximately $26.3 million and $24.7 million for the periods ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Managing general agency fees were $20.0 million and $21.1 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 
and 2013.  The managing general agency fees are the result of fee income generated by UCG from program administrator agreements with Alterra and 
Markel. Under these agreements, UCG produces and administers a book of fiduciary and union liability business. For these services, UCG receives fees for 
program agent commission, program administrator commission, claims handling and profit commission. In addition, life and health marketing fees were 
approximately $1.9 million and $2.5 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

Premiums, Charges and Benefits
Premiums for life and accident and health policies are generally recognized when due.  Premiums for property and casualty are earned over the contract 
term.  Benefit claims (including an estimated provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit reserve changes, and expenses (except deferred policy 
acquisition costs) are charged to income as incurred.  

Deposits for certain investment-type annuity and universal life insurance contracts are treated as liabilities rather than as premiums.  Revenues for 
investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation, administration and surrenders during the period.  Expenses 
include interest credited to policy account balances and benefit payments made in excess of policy account balances.  Credited interest rates ranged from 
1.75% to 6.5% in 2014 and 2013.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (“DAC”)
The Company defers and amortizes costs which are incrementally or directly related to the successful acquisition of new insurance business.  Such costs 
include commissions and costs of marketing the Company’s products. The DAC for supplemental insurance is amortized over the expected lifetime of the 
insurance contracts (typically 10-30 years).  DAC associated with property and casualty insurance is amortized to expense as premiums are earned (typically 
12 months or less).  For traditional life insurance products, DAC is amortized to income in proportion to the estimated premiums on such business.  For 
annuity products, DAC is amortized to expense in relation to estimated gross profits.  DAC is reviewed periodically for loss recognition and written down when 
necessary.  Anticipated investment income is considered when determining if a premium deficiency relating to short-duration contracts exists.

Investment Income
Investment income primarily consists of interest from fixed maturity securities and net investment income from limited partnership and limited liability 
corporation interests.  Interest is recognized on an accrual basis.  Income from limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations is recorded 
based on the equity method and earnings are included in investment income.  Realized gains and losses include gains and losses on investment disposi-
tions and write downs in value due to other-than-temporary declines in fair value.  Realized gains and losses on investment dispositions are determined on a 
specific identification basis.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Policyholder Dividends
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, approximately 99% of the Company’s in-force life and health business was written on a participating basis.  Dividends 
are earned by the policyholders ratably over the policy year. Dividends are included in the accompanying financial statements as a liability and as a charge 
to income in the period incurred. Dividends are paid on the anniversary date of the policy.

Reinsurance
The reinsurance recoverable amount reported includes amounts billed to reinsurers on paid policy life and accident and health benefits and claims and 
property and casualty losses, as well as estimates of amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurance on amounts that have not yet been paid. Reinsur-
ance recoverables on unpaid policy benefits and claims are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those utilized in establishing reserves.  The 
Company reviews reinsurance recoverable for collectability and records write-downs if necessary.  Premiums, benefits and expenses are recorded net of 
experience refunds, reserve adjustments and amounts assumed from or ceded to reinsurers, including commission and expense allowances.  The reinsurance 
balances payable amount reported includes amounts billed from reinsurers for premiums ceded which were written by the Company.  

Separate Accounts
Union Labor Life maintains separate account assets and liabilities, representing net deposits and accumulated net investment earnings less fees, held 
primarily for the benefit of tax-qualified group pension contract holders, which are reported at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.  The 
Company does not bear the investment risk.  The assets consist primarily of equity securities, publicly traded long-term bonds, construction and permanent 
mortgages, real estate equity, cash equivalents and short-term investments.  Investments income/(loss) from separate account investments do not impact 
the Company’s consolidated results. 

Income Taxes
Current federal income taxes are charged or credited to income based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a result of taxable income.  
Deferred income tax assets have been recorded for temporary differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the accompanying finan-
cial statements and those in the Company’s income tax returns.  A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not that such 
an asset would not be realized.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Included in property and equipment are capitalized costs 
related to computer software licenses and software developed for internal use.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets.  Estimated useful lives of depreciated assets are as follows: personal computers (3 years); printers, servers, mainframe 
equipment, software and furniture and fixtures (5 years).  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets 
or the related lease term, ranging from 5 to 10 years.  Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment was $15.0 million and $22.1 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.  Depreciation expense was $2.1 million and $2.2 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013.  The Company reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill of $3.2 million as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of the net assets of ac-
quired entities, net of $0.8 million of amortization recorded prior to 2002.  Management reviews the carrying value of goodwill to determine whether impair-
ment may exist.  This review is done annually unless events suggest that an impairment may have occurred in the interim. 

Contingent Liabilities
Amounts related to contingent liabilities are accrued if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is reasonably estimable.  

Reserves for Litigation
The Company is subject to lawsuits in the normal course of business related to its insurance and non-insurance products.  At the time when pending or 
threatened litigation becomes known, management evaluates the merits of the case and, if the potential settlements or judgments are determined to be 
probable and estimable, a reserve is established in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Accounting Standards Codification 
(“ASC”), 450-20, Contingencies, Loss Contingencies.  These reserves may be adjusted as the case develops.  Periodically, and at least quarterly, manage-
ment assesses all pending cases as a basis for evaluating reserve levels.  At that point, any necessary adjustments are made to applicable reserves as 
determined by management and are included in current operating results.  Reserves may be adjusted based upon outside counsel’s advice regarding the 
laws and facts of the case, any revisions in the law applicable to the case, the results of depositions and/or other forms of discovery, general developments 
as the case progresses such as a favorable or an adverse trial court ruling, whether a verdict is rendered for or against the Company, whether management 
believes an appeal will be successful, or other factors that may affect the anticipated outcome of the case.  Management believes adequate reserves have 
been established in known cases.  However, due to the uncertainty of future events, there can be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ from the 
assessments made by management. The Company has not recorded a legal contingency reserve as of December 31, 2014.  
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through April 23, 2015, the date the audited consolidated financial state-
ments were available to be issued and has determined that there were no events that required recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition
In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which creates a new 
comprehensive revenue recognition standard that will serve as a single source of revenue guidance for all companies in all industries. The guidance applies 
to all companies that either enter into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enter into contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets, 
unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards, such as insurance contracts. The revenue recognition guidance for insurance contracts is 
currently under discussion and will be issued at a later date. Under ASU No. 2014-09, a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In 
doing so, companies will need to use more judgment and make more estimates than under the current guidance. These may include identifying performance 
obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each 
separate performance obligation. ASU No. 2014-09 becomes effective for the Company during the first quarter of 2017 and must be applied retrospectively. 
The Company is currently evaluating ASU No. 2014-09 to determine the potential impact that adopting this standard will have on its consolidated financial 
statements.

Amortization of Goodwill
In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-02, which offers private companies a simplified alternative approach to account for goodwill. The new guidance 
permits the amortization of goodwill and eliminates the requirement to test goodwill for impairment annually.  The guidance is effective for years ending 
after December 15, 2014.  The Company will begin amortization of its goodwill in 2015.

Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, 
or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.  This standard requires an entity to present unrecognized tax benefits as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net 
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward.  ASU No. 2013-11 becomes effective for the Company during the first quarter of 
2015.  The Company does not expect a material impact to the consolidated financial statements.  
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 3---Investment Securities 

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as 
follows (in millions):

December 31, 2014

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized  

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          49.0 $            1.1 $                - $            50.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

52.2 5.9 0.1 58.0

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 0.5 0.1 - 0.6

Corporate debt securities 109.4 6.0 0.3 115.1

Residential mortgage-backed securities 70.4 4.2 0.1 74.5

     Total $         281.5 $          17.3 $             0.5 $          298.3

December 31, 2013

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
       Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          30.4 $            0.8 $                0.1 $            31.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

61.6 3.9 1.1 64.4

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 0.5 0.1 - 0.6

Corporate debt securities 100.2 4.8 1.2 103.8

Residential mortgage-backed securities 78.3 4.4 0.4 82.3

     Total $          271.0 $          14.0 $             2.8 $          282.2

The Company had $11.4 million and $12.4 million of securities on deposit with state regulatory authorities at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 
respectively.

The Company had $24.9 million and $15.3 million of assets pledged or collateral held in trust for the benefit of third parties at December 31, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013, respectively.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2014 by contractual maturity are shown below (in millions):

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $            15.6  $         15.6  

Due after one year through five years 54.1 56.3

Due after five years through ten years 79.7 84.4

Due after ten years 132.1 142.0

     Total $          281.5 $       298.3

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment 
penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are included based on their final maturity.

Proceeds from the sale of fixed maturities from continuing lines were $53.1 million and $58.8 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

Realized gains/(losses) on investments for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Realized Gains/(Losses)
December 31, 

2014
December 31, 

2013

Fixed maturities $              2.7                    $               1.3                    

Equity securities                     -                                             -                         

Limited partnerships - -

Realized gains/(losses) from continuing operations 2.7                  1.3                  

Realized gains/(losses) from discontinued operations                             - 12.1

     Total Realized Gains/(Losses) $              2.7       $             13.4       

The Company’s investment portfolio includes $0.4 million of unrealized losses on thirty-one fixed maturity securities that have been in a continuous loss 
position for less than twelve months.  The portfolio includes $0.1 million of unrealized losses on eleven fixed maturity securities that have been in a loss 
position for more than twelve months. The balance in the Company’s gross unrealized losses for available-for-sale securities for the period ended December 
31, 2014, was attributable primarily to reduced liquidity in several market segments. Based upon the nature of the fixed maturity securities, the Company 
believes that each issuer will meet all of its financial obligations.  The Company does not consider the fixed maturity securities to be other-than-temporarily 
impaired as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, based on the other factors described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the 
Company does not intend to sell the related fixed maturity securities and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell the fixed maturity securities 
before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity.
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The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2014 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies $              8.9 $           - $            2.2 $          - $        11.1 $            -

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and politi-
cal subdivisions of states 0.3 - 2.1                   0.1 2.4 0.1

Corporate debt securities 19.8 0.3 5.0                   - 24.8 0.3

Residential mortgage-backed securities 9.2 0.1 1.7                    - 10.9 0.1

    Total $            38.2 $       0.4   $          11.0             $      0.1 $        49.2 $        0.5   

The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2013 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies $            12.2 $       0.1 $                  - $          - $         12.2 $            0.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and politi-
cal subdivisions of states 16.4 1.1 -                   - 16.4 1.1

Corporate debt securities 31.3 1.1 2.0 0.1 33.3 1.2

Residential mortgage-backed securities 11.8 0.4 -                    - 11.8 0.4

    Total $            71.7 $       2.7   $               2.0 $           0.1 $         73.7 $             2.8   

Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on securities as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

Fixed maturities $        16.8 $        11.2

Less:  Deferred income taxes        (5.9)        (3.9)

      Net Unrealized Appreciation  $        10.9           $        7.3          
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Net investment income, by type of investment, is as follows for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Gross investment income:

   Fixed maturities  $        10.8    $        12.3   

   Mortgage loans, held for investment 1.2 1.0

   Limited partnerships                                                                             0.2                       0.2

Gross investment income                     12.2                     13.5

Less: Investment expenses           (0.8)           (0.9)

Net investment income from continuing operations 11.4 12.6

Net investment income from discontinued operations                        - 1.1

     Net investment income           $       11.4           $       13.7

Note 4---Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has adopted ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for all financial instruments accounted for at fair value in the Company’s 
financial statements.  ASC 820 established a new framework for measuring fair value and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the framework requires fair 
value to be determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It also establishes market or observable inputs as the 
preferred source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence of market inputs.

 ASC 820 specifies that a hierarchy of valuation techniques be determined for each asset based on whether the inputs to the valuation technique for those 
assets are observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs reflect market data corroborated by independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect as-
sumptions that are not observable in an active market or are developed internally.  These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels:

 • Level 1 valuations reflect quoted market or exchange prices for the actual or identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 

• Level 2 valuations reflect inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 which are observable. The inputs can include some or all of the following into a valu-
ation model:

• quoted prices on similar assets in active markets
• quoted prices on actual assets that are not active
• inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves, volatilities, prepayments speeds
• inputs derived from market data  

• Level 3 valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant valuation inputs are not observable in an active market, there is limited if 
any market activity, and/or are based on management inputs into a valuation model.

36   |  2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T



Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. The Company determines the fair 
value of financial assets utilizing prices obtained from a third party pricing service.  Typical inputs used to determine fair value include, but are not limited 
to, reported trades, broker/dealer prices, benchmark yields and issuer spreads.  In addition, the Company has an investment management team that reviews 
the valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments. 

 The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure the financial instruments at fair value.

Investments in Fixed Maturity and Debt Securities
All fixed maturity and debt securities are considered available for sale and consist of: United States (“US”) Treasury notes and bonds which trade actively 
and are categorized as Level 1; corporate bonds, government or agency debt, securitized debt (collateralized mortgage obligation or mortgage backed 
security) and private placements have valuations that use such inputs as dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, similar traded securities, and other 
observable data to generate their fair values which result in a Level 2 categorization.

Investments in Cash Equivalents
Investments in cash equivalents consist of money market fund holdings, US Treasury bills and certificates of deposit. All of these instruments have readily 
available market or exchange prices in an active market and are classified as Level 1 assets.  

Separate Account Assets
The amount shown on the balance sheet represents the total of all Separate Account assets held in each of the accounts managed within the Company.  
Assets held in the Separate Accounts consists of US Treasury bills, US Treasury bonds, cash, common stock and investments in money market funds all of 
which are Level 1 assets as their values are readily available in the open market. Corporate bonds, corporate commercial paper, government or agency debt 
and securitized debt are valued using the market approach and priced using pricing models or matrix pricing making them Level 2 assets.  Mortgage loans 
are fair valued internally using a discounted cash flow method and are categorized as Level 3 assets.  Real estate is fair valued internally using a combina-
tion of external appraisals, internal valuations, and management’s best estimates based on actual market metrics as observed on an asset by asset basis 
from month to month and is categorized as Level 3 assets.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2014

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $    9.3     $    40.8     $      -   $     50.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states 
and political subdivisions of states

-           58.0     -          58.0

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-             0.6    -            0.6

Corporate debt securities -         115.1    -             115.1

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

-           74.5    -               74.5

Fixed Maturities Total        9.3                     289.0   -        298.3

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

    0.4  - -         0.4

Money market funds  37.0  - -       37.0

Cash Equivalents Total        37.4 - -      37.4

Total Investments $     46.7 $     289.0  $       - $ 335.7

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2014 or 2013.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2013

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $   11.5     $    19.6     $      -   $    31.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states 
and political subdivisions of states

-           64.4     -          64.4

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-             0.6    -            0.6

Corporate debt securities -         103.8    -             103.8

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

-   82.3    -               82.3

Fixed Maturities Total        11.5                     270.7   -        282.2

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

    0.7  - -         0.7

Money market funds  34.8  - -       34.8

Cash Equivalents Total        35.5 - -      35.5

Total Investments $     47.0 $     270.7  $       - $ 317.7
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2014 for all Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2014

Equities Common Stock $     54.9 $   - $    - $      54.9

Equities Total        54.9     -       -         54.9

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

-                        23.4 -         23.4

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-   0.1 -          0.1

Commercial mortgage-backed 
securities

-       380.7 -       380.7

Corporate debt securities -   7.4 -          7.4

Asset-backed securities -   1.8 -           1.8

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

-       292.0 -       292.0

Fixed Maturities Total -       705.4 -        705.4

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

 - - -        -   

Corporate debt securities          -  158.3 -       158.3

Money market funds      120.9 - -       120.9

Cash Equivalents Total      120.9  158.3 -       279.2

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans - -  1,700.8  1,700.8

Real Estate Real Estate - -      52.9      52.9

Total Separate Account Investments $  175.8 $ 863.7 $ 1,753.7 $ 2,793.2
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The following table present additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value
Valuation  

Techniques
Unobservable 

Inputs Range 
Weighted  
Average

Mortgage Loans $494.2 Discounted Cash Flow Discount rates 2.47 -5.43% 4.16%

Cap rates 3.05 - 10.5%

Market rates 2.5 – 8.0%

Mortgage Loans 1,156.0 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Mortgage Loans 50.6 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 52.9 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $1,753.7     

(a) Approximates fair value. 
(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2014 or 2013.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 (in millions): 

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans Total

Balance, January 1, 2014 $     72.2 $         1,823.8 $      1,896.0  

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 

  Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders  2.9 (64.2) (61.3)

  Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - 58.2 58.2

  Purchases - 813.9 813.9

  Sales/Repayments (22.2) (930.9) (953.1)

  Transfers in and out of Level 3 - - -

Balance, December 31, 2014 $         52.9 $          1,700.8 $      1,753.7  

The gains/(losses) for the period included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at 
December 31, 2014 was $4.9 million.
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 for all Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2013

Equities Common Stock $     52.1 $          - $           - $      52.1

Equities Total        52.1     -       -         52.1

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

-                        94.4 -         94.4

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-   - -         -

Commercial mortgage-backed 
securities

-       128.8 -      128.8

Corporate debt securities - 10.9 -       10.9

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

- 76.6 -       76.6

Fixed Maturities Total -       310.7 -        310.7

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

 - 23.6 -         23.6

Corporate debt securities        18.3  7.0 -          25.3

Money market funds      132.8 - -       132.8

Cash Equivalents Total      151.1  30.6 -       181.7

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  -  1,823.8     1,823.8

Real Estate Real Estate      72.2         72.2

Total Separate Account Investments    $   203.2 $  341.3 $ 1,896.0 $ 2,440.5
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The following table presents additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value Valuation Techniques
Unobservable 

Inputs
Range 

Weighted 
Average

Mortgage Loans $1,259.0 Discounted Cash Flow Discount rates 2.62 -5.94% 3.89%

Cap rates 4.0 - 10.0%

Market rates 2.25 – 8.0%

Mortgage Loans 483.3 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Mortgage Loans 81.5 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 72.2 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $1,896.0     

(a) Approximates fair value.
(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (in millions): 

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans Total

Balance, January 1, 2013 $     65.1 $      1,684.8 $      1,749.9  

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 

  Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders (8.9) (26.1) (35.0)

  Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - 29.5 29.5

  Purchases                         61.5 376.4 437.9

  Sales/Repayments (45.5) (240.8) (286.3)

  Transfers in and out of Level 3 - - -

Balance, December 31, 2013                          $         72.2 $    1,823.8 $      1,896.0  

The gains/(losses) for the period included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at 
December 31, 2013 was $(5.7) million.

Changes in Separate Account assets are fully offset by the same change in Separate Account liabilities.  There is no impact on the consolidated statement of 
income in regards to these changes.

There were no assets in the Company’s general account measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. 
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ASC 825, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the Balance Sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available for identical or 
comparable financial instruments, fair values are based on estimates using the present values of estimated cash flows or other valuation techniques.  
Estimated fair values can be significantly affected by the methods and assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates as to the amounts and 
timing of future cash flows.  Accordingly, the fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could have been realized by the 
Company as of year-end or that will be realized in the future.

Fair values for the Company’s insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed under ASC 825.  However, the estimated 
fair value and future cash flows of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into consideration in the Company’s overall management of interest 
rate risk, which minimizes exposure to changing interest rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.  
Management believes that disclosing the estimated fair value of all assets without a corresponding revaluation of all liabilities associated with insurance 
contracts can be misinterpreted.  The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the actual value of the Company.

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments. 

Limited partnerships and limited liability corporations are reported under the equity method of accounting.  The carrying value of the limited partnerships 
and limited liability corporations is assumed to approximate its fair value.  The fair value of mortgage loans is estimated through the use of discounted cash 
flow techniques using interest rates currently being offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar charac-
teristics are aggregated for purposes of this analysis.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with defined maturities and policyholder funds on deposit liabilities 
are valued using discounted cash flow techniques based upon interest rates currently being offered by the Company for similar contracts with maturities 
consistent with the contracts being valued.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with no defined maturities are valued using discounted cash flow techniques 
based upon a risk free interest rate, adjusted for Company specific non-performance risk and a non-stochastic process margin or the amount payable on 
demand at the reporting date.  Other assets and liabilities considered financial instruments such as premium and accounts receivable, accrued investment 
income and cash are generally of a short-term nature and their carrying values are deemed to approximate fair value.

(in millions) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Financial Instrument Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations $    7.5 $    7.5 $    7.6 $    7.6

Mortgage loans held for investment 20.0 20.8 21.4 22.0

Policyholder funds on deposit 4.5 4.5 4.3 4.3

Deposit-type annuity contracts 61.9 60.6 64.1 62.5
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Note 5---Mortgage Loans - Held for Investment

Mortgage loans held for investment and the related valuation reserves, if any, are as follows at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Commercial mortgages  $      19.8  $      21.2

Residential mortgages 0.2 0.2

Less:  Mortgage valuation reserves - -

     Net Mortgage Loans  $      20.0    $      21.4   

The Company’s mortgage loans held for investment, net of related reserves, if any, for significant states at December 31, 2014 are as follows (dollars in 
millions):

Number  Balance  % of  portfolio

California 2 $        8.1 40.5%

Michigan 1 8.1 40.5%

Virginia 2 3.0 15.0%

Illinois 1 0.6 3.0%

Other states 3 0.2 1.0%

     Total 9 $      20.0       100.0%

Note 6---Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Leasehold improvements $         2.8 $       6.4

Furniture and equipment 4.7 5.9

Software 12.9 14.2

  Property and equipment, at cost 20.4 26.5

Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization     (15.0)     (22.1)

     Net Property and Equipment  $         5.4  $       4.4
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Note 7---Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs deferred for amortization against future income and the related amortization charged to expense are as follows as of and for the 
periods ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Balance, January 1 $              26.5   $       28.6

Costs deferred during the period:

  Direct marketing costs 2.3 3.3

  Premium taxes - 0.4

  Underwriting, compensation and other acquisition costs 11.4 18.3

    Total costs deferred during the period 13.7 22.0

Less:  Costs amortized during the period (13.3) (20.6)

Effect of deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty - (3.5)

     Balance $              26.9 $       26.5

No premium deficiency reserve was established at December 31, 2014 as the sum of expected estimated losses and loss adjustment expenses, unamortized 
acquisition costs and maintenance costs did not exceed unearned premium.

Note 8---Claim Reserves

Activity in the liability for unpaid life and health claims as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is summarized as fol-
lows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Balance, January 1 $             63.2         $      62.1         

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 6.5 6.2

Net balance, January 1 56.7 55.9

Incurred related to:

   Current year 113.0 103.7

   Prior years (4.2) (3.1)

Total Incurred 108.8 100.6

Paid related to:

   Current year 54.5 59.6

   Prior years 39.6 40.2

Total Paid 94.1 99.8

Net balance 71.4 56.7

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 7.9 6.5

Total claim reserves $             79.3 $      63.2

Total policy reserves 106.0                  114.7

Total life, accident and health and annuity reserves $           185.3 $    177.9
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The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced favorable prior year reserve development of $4.2 million for the period ended December 
31, 2014.  The following products had favorable prior year reserve development: medical stop loss ($2.8 million), specialty and other health ($0.5 million), 
and supplemental health ($1.2 million).  The following products experienced unfavorable prior year reserve development: group life ($0.2 million) and indi-
vidual agency health ($0.1 million). The overall favorable reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense 
and represents the Company’s best estimates.

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced favorable prior year reserve development of $3.1 million for the period ended December 
31, 2013.  The following products had favorable prior year reserve development: medical stop loss ($3.8 million), specialty and other health ($1.0 million), 
supplemental health ($0.4 million), and supplemental life ($0.3 million).  The following products experienced unfavorable prior year reserve development: 
group life ($1.7 million), home health care ($0.3 million) and group health reinsurance assumed pools ($0.4 million). The overall favorable reserve develop-
ment was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense and represents the Company’s best estimates.

Activity in the liability for unpaid property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013 is summarized as follows (in millions): 

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Balance, January 1  $           4.2  $       499.9

     Less: reinsurance recoverables - 158.0

Net balance, January 1 4.2 341.9

Incurred related to:

   Current year (2013 includes $13.9 related to Ullico Casualty) 11.3 18.2

   Prior years (2013 includes $1.7 related to Ullico Casualty) (0.8) 1.7

Total Incurred 10.5 19.9

Paid related to:

   Current year (2013 includes $0.2 related to Ullico Casualty) 0.6 0.2 

   Prior years (2013 includes $16.3 related to Ullico Casualty) 0.6 16.3

Total Paid 1.2 16.5

Less:  Effect of deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty - (341.1)

Net balance 13.5 4.2

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables - -

Total property and casualty reserves  $         13.5        $           4.2       

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced favorable prior year reserve development of $0.8 million and unfavorable prior year reserve 
development of $1.7 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

The favorable prior year reserve development in 2014 is related to the professional lines of business. The unfavorable prior year reserve development in 2013 
is related to the workers’ compensation line of business produced by Ullico Casualty.

Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the result of claim settlements during the current year, and as additional information is received regarding 
unpaid additional claims.  Recent loss development trends are also taken into account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE. 
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Note 9---Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company assumes risks from and cedes certain parts of its risks to other insurance companies.  The primary purpose 
of ceded reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligations to policyholders.  To the extent that reinsuring companies are later unable to meet obliga-
tions under reinsurance agreements, the Company would be liable for these obligations.  The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and 
attempts to limit its exposure to any one reinsurer.  

Union Labor Life maintains certain reinsurance agreements under excess of loss, quota share, and catastrophe coverage.  For Stop Loss contracts, the Com-
pany retains $1.25 million plus 25% quota share on claims between $1.25 million and $2.0 million.  Prior to August 1, 2014, for group life and AD&D, and 
direct marketing life and AD&D policies, the Company retained a maximum of $125,000 per policy. Effective August 1, 2014, the maximum retention amount 
increased to $150,000 per policy.

Effective October 1, 2012, certain life insurance, individual agency and group conversion life policies issued by Union Labor Life and Ullico Life Insurance 
Company (“Ullico Life”) were 100% ceded to Southern Financial Life Insurance Company (“SFIC”), a Louisiana domestic company. As of December 31, 2014, 
there were approximately $14.4 million in reserves ceded to SFIC.  

Effective October 1, 2012, Union Labor Life entered into a 30% modified coinsurance (“modco”) arrangement on its medical stop loss business with Canada 
Life Assurance Company.  Under this agreement, Union Labor Life will retain its liability on the policies net of the reinsured obligation.   The amount of ceded 
premium and claims was $27.0 million and $15.7 million for 2014 and $24.2 million and $16.6 million for 2013, respectively.  The amount of stop loss modco 
reserve adjustment for 2014 was an increase of $4.9 million. The amount of stop loss modco reserve adjustment for 2013 was an increase of $0.1 million.

During 2006, certain annuity and life policies issued by Ullico Life Insurance Company and 100% co-insured with Sagicor Life Insurance Company (a Texas 
domestic company and formerly American Founders Life Insurance Company) were assumed by Sagicor Life Insurance Company, thereby releasing Ullico Life 
Insurance Company of any current or future liability related to these policies.  As of December 31, 2014, there is approximately $1.8 million in reserves ceded 
to Sagicor Life. 

Starting in 2009, Union Labor Life entered into a reinsurance arrangement with Fidelity Security Life Insurance Company (“Fidelity Security Life”) and Gerber 
Life Insurance Company (“Gerber”) whereby stop loss premium is written on Fidelity Security Life and Gerber paper.  Union Labor Life then assumes 95% and 
90% of the written premium from Fidelity Security Life and Gerber, respectively.  In January of 2013, the relationship with Gerber was ended and an agreement 
with Fidelity Security Life Insurance of New York was entered into in its place. Effective January 1, 2015, Fidelity Security Life entered into a new treaty with 
Union Labor Life that provides for Union Labor Life to assume 80% of the stop loss premium written on Fidelity Security Life paper. In addition, a new treaty 
effective January 1, 2015 between Union Labor Life and Fidelity Security Life provides for Fidelity Security Life to assume 20% of the stop loss premium written 
on Union Labor Life paper.

Labor Captive participates in a single reinsurance arrangement wherein Labor Captive assumes 60% of the first $2.0 million of loss per occurrence.  This 
agreement covers fiduciary and union liability policies produced by UCG as program administrator for Alterra and Markel.  Effective January 1, 2015, Labor 
Captive assumes 65% of the first $2.0 million of loss per occurrence.  The total maximum exposure per occurrence for 2015 is $1.3 million (65% times $2.0 
million) compared to $1.2 million (60% times $2.0 million) for 2014 and prior.
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The effects of reinsurance on premium income and benefits and claims incurred for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Life, health and annuities premium income:

  Direct $      143.3 $      133.2

  Assumed 28.7 32.1

  Ceded (36.9) (32.3)

     Net premium income earned  $      135.1  $      133.0

Property and casualty premiums written:     

  Direct  $             -         $              -        

  Assumed 25.0 19.4

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income written from continuing operations 25.0 19.4

    Net premium income written from discontinued operations                        -             15.8             

     Net premium income written $       25.0 $        35.2

Property and casualty premiums earned:

  Direct $             -        $              -        

  Assumed 23.9 9.5

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income earned from continuing operations 23.9 9.5

     Net premium income earned from discontinued operations                         - 20.8

     Net premium income earned $        23.9 $         30.3

Life, health and annuities benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $      102.8         $       110.9        

  Assumed 20.4 20.3

  Ceded (23.2) (26.7)

     Net benefits and claims incurred $      100.0 $       104.5

Property and casualty benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $              -         $              -        

  Assumed    10.5    4.3

  Ceded -                        -

    Net benefits and claims incurred from continuing operations      10.5      4.3

     Net benefits and claims incurred from discontinued operations                         - 15.6

     Net benefits and claims incurred $        10.5 $         19.9
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Total amounts recoverable from reinsurers at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are $26.5 million and $25.1 million, respectively.  

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2014 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Other Total

A++ $0.7 - - $0.7 

A+ 2.5 4.0 0.6 7.1 

A 2.5 - - 2.5 

A- 1.9 - 0.1 2.0

B++ 0.2 - - 0.2

B+ - -  - - 

Not rated by A.M. Best 13.6 0.3 0.1 14.0 

Total $21.4                         $4.3 $0.8 $26.5 

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2013 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Other Total

A++ $1.0 $0.2 - $1.2 

A+ 0.2 4.2 1.6 6.0 

A - - - - 

A- 2.3 - 0.1 2.4

B++ 0.2 - - 0.2

B+ - -  0.1 0.1 

Not rated by A.M. Best 14.7 0.5 - 15.2 

Total $18.4 $4.9 $1.8          $25.1 

Certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up letters of credit or trust accounts as collateral for the Company’s benefit in 
the event of insolvency. 

The following collateral is available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2014 (in millions):

Regulation 114                                 
Trust

 Letters  
of Credit

Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $14.8 -  $14.8 
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The following collateral was available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Continuing Operations
Regulation 114  

Trust  Letters of     Credit Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $15.4                  -    $15.4 

MedTrans Insurance -                 $0.2    0.2 

Total $15.4               $0.2 $15.6 

Note 10---Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans 
Effective July 1, 2012, the Company merged its Ullico Inc. Pension Plan and Trust (the “Plan”), a single employer defined benefit plan, into the AFL-CIO 
Staff Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined benefit plan with a fiscal year end of June 30.   The Company also began contributing to the AFL-CIO Staff 
Retirement Plan, which covers certain eligible employees.  The risks of participating in a multiemployer plan are different from single-employer plans as 
assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers.  In addition, if 
a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers.  If the 
Company chooses to stop participating in the multiemployer plan it may be required to pay the plan a withdrawal penalty based on the underfunded status 
of the plan.  The AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan records the present value of retirement incentive contributions using a discount rate of 7.5%.  The Company’s 
year-to-date contributions to the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan represented more than 5% of all participating employers’ total contributions for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2014.

The financial health of a multiemployer plan is indicated by the zone status, as defined by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, which represents the funded 
status of the plan as certified by the plan’s actuary.  Plans in the red zone are less than 65% funded, the yellow zone are between 65% and 80% funded and 
green zone are at least 80% funded.

The following information details the Company’s participation in the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan:

Employer Identification Number/Pension Plan Number:   52-6044583-001

Pension Protection Act Zone Status as of June 30, 2014:  Green

Company Contributions for 2014 and 2013:   $6.9 million and $7.7 million

The AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan’s investment strategy includes investing in securities which provide long-term appreciation and revenue generation.  The 
strategy also includes investments in hedge funds in order to attain above average rates of returns and long-term capital growth.

The Company also sponsors an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit plan and a defined contribution savings and investment plan, as well as other 
postretirement health and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.  The Company made matching contributions to its defined contribution savings and 
investment plan  of $0.7 million and $0.8 million in 2014 and 2013. 
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Information with respect to the Company’s non-qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligation is as follows (in millions): 

Obligations and Funded Status
Non-qualified Pension 

Benefits
Postretirement Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Change in benefits obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $        10.7  $      11.0  $      15.2  $      19.5 

Service cost 0.1 0.2              0.1              0.1

Interest cost 0.5 0.4 0.6 0.6

Plan amendments (0.3) - (9.9) -

Actuarial loss/(gain) 2.1 (0.4)              3.0           (4.1)

Benefits paid (0.5) (0.5) (0.9) (0.9)

Transfer to other plan - - - -

Benefit obligation at end of year  $        12.6  $      10.7   $        8.1  $      15.2 

The amount recorded in 2014 related to plan amendments to postretirement benefits results from significant changes the Company made to the retiree 
life insurance and healthcare benefits provided to retired management employees.  The Company no longer fully subsidizes retirees’ annual life and health 
insurance costs. The plan amendments resulted in a decrease in the Company’s postretirement benefit obligations in the amount of $1.1 million for life 
insurance and $8.8 million for healthcare.

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Change in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year - - - -

Market adjustment - - - -

Actual return on plan assets - - - -

Employer contribution 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.9

Benefits paid (0.5) (0.5) (0.9) (0.9)

Administrative expenses - - - -

Transfer to other plan - - - -

Fair value of plan assets end of year  $             -  $            -   $            -  $            - 

Information for the Company’s non-qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is 
as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Accumulated benefit obligation  $      12.6   $      10.3   $           -  $           -

Benefit obligation 12.6 10.7 8.1 15.2

Fair value of assets - - - -

Funded status $    (12.6) $    (10.7) $   (8.1) $   (15.2) 
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:
Current liabilities       (0.6)       (0.5)     (0.6)     (1.0)

Non-current liabilities (12.0) (10.2) (7.5) (14.2)
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Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consist of:

Net actuarial loss/(gain)  $         3.5  $        1.4     $         4.1  $        1.2

Prior service cost/(credit)            (0.2)              0.3 (16.2) (7.5)

Net amount recognized $         3.3  $        1.7  $     (12.1)  $       (6.3)

The other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows (in millions): 

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

New prior service cost/(credit) $      (0.3)            - $     (9.9)              -

New net loss/(gain)         2.1   $     (0.4)             2.9  $      (4.1) 

Amortization of prior service credit/(cost)     (0.2)     (0.2)           1.2 1.0

Amortization of net gain/(loss)             - (0.2)         (0.1) (0.1)

Total recognized in other comprehensive income  $        1.6  $     (0.8)  $     (5.9)  $      (3.2) 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income  
and net periodic benefit cost

 $        2.4 $       0.2  $     (6.3)  $      (3.4) 

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Service cost  $        0.1   $       0.2   $        0.1  $        0.1 

Interest cost 0.5 0.4 0.6 0.6

Expected return on plan assets - - - -

Amortization of prior service cost 0.2 0.2 (1.2) (1.0)

Amortization of net loss/(gain)               - 0.2 0.1 0.1

Net periodic benefit cost  $        0.8  $       1.0  $     (0.4)  $     (0.2) 

Information regarding the estimated amortization amounts for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified Pension  
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

Amortization of prior service cost/(credit) -  $     (1.9)

Amortization of net loss/(gain)  0.3  0.3

Total  $        0.3      $      (1.6)
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The rate assumptions utilized as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement 
 Benefits

2014 2013 2014 2013

Discount Rate 3.9% 4.7% 3.9% 4.5%

Expected return on plan assets - - - -

Rate of compensation increase 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its non-qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

For postretirement health benefit measurement purposes, an 8.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was as-
sumed for the year ending December 31, 2014.  The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% until 2020 and remain at that level thereafter. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the as-
sumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1 Percentage Point Increase        1 Percentage Point Decrease 

Effect on Total of Service and Interest Cost for year      $0.1 million $(0.1) million

ended December 31, 2014

Effect on Benefit Obligation as of December 31, 2014      $0.6 million $(0.5) million

As of December 31, 2014, the following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, are expected to be paid from the benefit plans (in millions).  
These benefit payments are calculated using the same rate assumptions previously noted.

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement 
 Benefits

2015 $       0.6 $    0.6

2016 0.6 0.5

2017 0.6 0.5

2018 0.6 0.5

2019 0.6 0.5

2020-2024 3.3 2.4
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Note 11 --- Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated life-nonlife Federal income tax return including all eligible subsidiaries.  The components of income tax (expense)/benefit 
are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current                 $                     - $                   1.5

  Deferred                                      3.5 (5.2)

    Federal income tax (expense)/benefit                                   3.5 (3.7)

State Income Tax Expense

  Current  -  - 

  Deferred  -  -

     State income tax expense - -

Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit from continuing operations  $                  3.5  $                  (3.7)

Income Tax Expense from discontinued operations -                              (4.7)

Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit $                  3.5 $                  (8.4)

The reconciliation of Federal taxes computed at the statutory rate of 35% to the income tax (expense)/benefit is as follows (in millions):

December 31,  
2014

December 31,  
2013

Federal income tax (expense)/benefit at statutory rate        $                (2.9)       $                 (11.8)

Valuation allowance                         4.2                             3.8

Deconsolidation gain                             -                        13.3

Deconsolidation of deferred tax assets                          1.0                       (13.5)

Net operating loss adjustment                          1.0                              - 

Other, net                             0.2                          (0.2)

     Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit $                  3.5        $                  (8.4)
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The tax effects of items comprising the Company’s net Federal deferred income tax asset are as follows at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in 
millions):

December 31, 
  2014

  December  31, 
  2013

Federal Deferred Tax Asset

   Insurance reserves $       5.5      $        4.3

   Pension and postretirement benefits 7.2 9.0

   Deferred partnership and real estate losses 0.7 2.6

   Tax effect of net operating loss carryforwards 62.7 15.4

   Deferred subsidiary loss - 42.2

   Tax credit carryover 1.8 1.8

   Uncollectible reinsurance/bad debt - 3.9

   Other 1.4 2.1

   Valuation allowance (63.8) (68.0)

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax asset 15.5 13.3

Federal Deferred Tax Liability

   Deferred policy acquisition costs and ceding commissions 8.5 8.3

   Developed software and excess depreciation 0.8 0.8

   Unrealized capital gains and investments 6.2 4.2

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax liability 15.5 13.3

Net Federal Deferred Tax Asset $           - $            -

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has concluded that it is more likely than not that the benefit from net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred 
tax assets will not be realized in the foreseeable future. Based on this assessment, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of $63.8 million against 
the deferred tax asset, in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. 

As of December 31, 2014, the Company has federal regular-tax net operating loss carry forwards of $179.2 million, which will be used to offset future taxable 
income.  Regular tax net operating loss carry forwards consist of $177.9 million for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2023 and $1.3 million for 
the life companies which start to expire in 2029.

The Company paid no federal income tax as of December 31, 2014. The Company paid $0.1 million of income tax as of December 31, 2013.

There are no penalties on income taxes paid or accrued for 2014 or 2013.   There are no material unrecognized tax benefits within the meaning of ASC 740-10-
65-2 and management does not expect any significant increase or decrease within the following 12 months. The Company recognizes interest and penalties 
accrued, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. Tax years that remain open and subject to examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service are for calendar years 2011 forward.   
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Note 12---Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases
The Company leases office space, data processing and copier equipment and certain other equipment under operating leases expiring on various dates 
between 2015 and 2025.  Most of the leases contain renewal and purchase options based on prevailing fair market values.  Lease payments totaled $4.5 
million and $6.9 million for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Aggregate future minimum rent payments required under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows (in 
millions):

Period ending  
December 31

Minimum Lease  
Payments

2015 $             3.0

2016 3.0

2017 2.9

2018 3.0

2019 1.8

Thereafter 4.6

Total $           18.3

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet its financing needs.  These financial 
instruments include investment commitments related to separate account mortgage loans.  These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit 
and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans for Union Labor Life for the benefit of Separate Ac-
count J and W1 of approximately $1,121.7 million and $377.4 million, respectively. 

Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, maintains a line of credit with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce in the amount of $50.0 million.  The 
line of credit was reduced from $100.0 million during the first quarter of 2014. The line of credit is secured solely by the assets of Separate Account J.  The 
unused line of credit was $50.0 million and $100.0 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. No draws were taken in 2014 or 2013.

Union Labor Life has a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for 
a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  Union Labor Life has renewed the credit facility through December 31, 2015. No draws were taken in 2014 or 2013.

FDIC Limit
The Company maintains its own funds in bank accounts with balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.
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Audits, Investigations, Litigation and Unasserted Claims
Ullico and its subsidiaries are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of their business. In the opinion of management, such investiga-
tions, litigation, and unasserted claims will not have a material impact on the financial condition, results of income, or cash flow of the Company.

The circumstances giving rise to the receivership proceedings for Ullico Casualty, a former affiliate, could result in the assertion of claims against the Com-
pany or past and present directors, officers and employees of the Company.  If such claims are asserted, the Company intends to dispute them vigorously 
and the outcome of any such claims cannot be determined.  

Guarantees
The Company and, in certain instances, its subsidiary, Union Labor Life, are party to several guaranty agreements pursuant to which the performance of 
Ullico Casualty under certain reinsurance agreements is guaranteed.

Guarantees to State National Insurance Company

• Effective February 1, 2004, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 
dated February 1, 2004 with State National Insurance Company (“SNIC”) for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company to 
hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation to make payments to SNIC 
for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make.  Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 150% of outstanding loss reserves.  
The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from 2004 
to 2008 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty.  

• Effective January 1, 2009, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share re-
insurance agreement dated January 1, 2009 with SNIC for Workers’ Compensation policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company to hold SNIC harmless 
with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation make payments to SNIC for any payments that 
Ullico Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 150% of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves.  
The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from 2009 
to 2012 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty.

• Effective January 1, 2012, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share 
reinsurance agreement dated January 1, 2012 with SNIC for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company and Union Labor 
Life, jointly and severally, to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation 
to make payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 200% 
of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves. The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the 
reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from February 2012 to January 2013 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty. 
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To satisfy certain of the guarantee obligations described above, effective April 5, 2013, the Company and Union Labor Life entered into a security fund agree-
ment with SNIC pursuant to which $13.6 million was deposited into a security fund account for the benefit of SNIC to provide additional required collateral 
under the reinsurance agreements entered into by SNIC and Ullico Casualty dated February 1, 2004, January 1, 2009 and January 1, 2012, as described 
above. Union Labor Life deposited $13.6 million into the security fund account on April 9, 2013. SNIC released $12.5 million in 2013 and the remainder of the 
funds in 2014. At December 31, 2014, Union Labor Life had no funds held by SNIC.

Based on publicly available information, SNIC reported reinsurance recoverable (net of offsets) of $20.5 million at December 31, 2014. Ullico Casualty funds 
on deposit in a security fund account were $53.3 million at December 31, 2014. As such, management believes that there is no exposure to the Company’s 
guarantee at December 31, 2014.

Guarantees to Other Parties

• Effective October 1, 2007, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 
dated October 1, 2007 with Hudson Insurance Company (“Hudson”) for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty provides that the Company 
will guarantee the performance by Ullico Casualty of its liabilities under the reinsurance agreement, including all payment and collateral obligations. 
Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves as determined by Hudson.  The 
guarantee provides that it will remain in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the reinsurance agreement. Hudson issued 
policies from 2007 to 2012 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty and administered by Ullico Casualty Group. Based on publicly available information, 
Hudson reported reinsurance recoverable (net of offsets) of $23.1 million at December 31, 2014. Ullico Casualty funds on deposit in a security fund ac-
count were $25.5 million at December 31, 2014. As such, management believes that there is no exposure to the Company’s guarantee at December 31, 
2014.

• Effective April 1, 2010, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement dated 
April 1, 2010 with Companion Property and Casualty Insurance Company (“Companion”) for Workers’ Compensation policies, including the obligation to 
make any loss and loss adjustment expense payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make.  Collateral was required under a related reinsurance trust 
agreement at 102% of outstanding loss reserves as determined by Companion.  The Company’s guarantee obligations did not extend to the collateral 
commitment in the reinsurance trust agreement.  By its terms, the guaranty remained in force as long as Ullico Casualty had outstanding obligations 
under the reinsurance agreement. Companion issued policies from 2010 to 2012 which were fully reinsured by Ullico Casualty. In March of 2013, Ullico 
Casualty had $18.8 million on deposit in the trust account for the benefit of Companion.  Subsequently, Companion withdrew all of the funds from the 
trust account. Companion estimated that outstanding loss reserves were $22.9 million at December 31, 2013 and indicated that it had $12.3 million to 
fund future claim payments at that time.  The Company established a contingency reserve of $6.0 million at December 31, 2012 and an additional reserve 
of $5.0 million in 2013 to reflect potential liability on the guaranty.  On February 28, 2014, the Company executed a Funding and Release Agreement (“the 
Agreement”) with Companion.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company deposited $11.0 million into a segregated custodial account maintained 
by Companion. In return, Companion released the Company from the guaranty obligations. The Company will receive any remaining funds in the account 
once all outstanding obligations under the reinsurance agreement are satisfied. To satisfy the funding obligation under the Agreement, Union Labor Life 
requested approval from the Maryland Insurance Administration (“MIA”) for an extraordinary dividend of $11.0 million. The dividend request was ap-
proved on February 26, 2014. The dividend was paid to the Company on February 28, 2014. 

The maximum potential amount of future payments under the above guarantees is the obligations incurred by Ullico Casualty under the related reinsurance 
agreements.   The current estimate of this amount is the loss reserves as of December 31, 2014.   Loss reserves are based upon assumptions and estimates 
and while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amount estimated. The collateral ac-
counts described above are funded with investment grade bonds.  The Company believes there is adequate collateral in the collateral accounts to fund the 
reinsurance agreement obligations.
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In addition to the guarantees described above that relate to reinsurance obligations of Ullico Casualty, now in receivership, the Company is also party to 
certain guarantees that relate to the professional liability program of its subsidiary, UCG, as described below.

• Effective November 15, 2012, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under a quota share reinsurance agreement 
with Alterra with respect to certain liability policies issued on Alterra paper.  The guaranty agreement and quota share reinsurance agreement have been 
subsequently amended and, most recently, effective March 1, 2014, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under 
a second amended and restated quota share reinsurance agreement effective November 15, 2012, with Alterra with respect to Union Liability, Fiduciary 
Liability, Governmental Liability, and Excess Fiduciary Liability policies issued on Alterra paper.  The second amended and restated guaranty provides that 
the Company will guarantee any payments arising out of or relating to the obligations and liabilities of Labor Captive arising from the second amended 
and restated quota share reinsurance agreement that Labor Captive is unwilling or unable to make, including collateral obligations.  Collateral is required 
under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of: (a) reserves for unearned premiums, if any; (b) the unearned portions of any claims handling expenses; 
and (c) reserves for losses incurred but not reported and losses reported but unpaid. The second amended and restated guaranty also provides that: (1) 
the Company will contribute additional funds to Labor Captive if required for  Labor Captive to maintain adequate capital pursuant to the reinsurance 
agreement; (2) the Company will indemnify and hold Alterra harmless with respect to any and all liabilities or losses relating to the obligations of  Labor 
Captive arising from the reinsurance agreement; (3) the Company guarantees the performance and obligations of UCG, which is the managing general 
agent for the Alterra program, to indemnify and hold Alterra harmless as provided in a third amended and restated program administration agreement 
effective November 15, 2012, with Alterra and Labor Captive.  The quota share reinsurance agreement and the program administration agreements were 
amended to include Alterra’s affiliate, Markel, in the Alterra program to facilitate offering the program in all states. The Company’s guaranty obligations 
remain in full force and effect as long as Labor Captive has any obligations under the reinsurance agreement or UCG has any obligations to indemnify 
Alterra under the program administrator agreement. The collateral required by Alterra at December 31, 2014 in connection with the Alterra and Markel 
policies was $24.9 million. At December 31, 2014, $24.9 million was on deposit in a trust account for the benefit of Alterra.

• Effective March 1, 2014, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of UCG, which is the managing general agent for the Alterra pro-
gram, to indemnify and hold Markel harmless as provided in the program administration agreement, effective March 1, 2014, with Markel and UCG.  The 
Company’s guaranty obligations remain in full force and effect as long as UCG has any obligations to indemnify Markel under the program administrator 
agreement.  The Company’s obligations to Markel under the guaranty are identical to its obligations to Alterra under the second amended and restated 
guaranty referred to above.

Note 13--Capital

At December 31, 2014, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries had statutory capital and surplus of $76.4 million, determined in accordance with statutory 
accounting practices utilized in filings with insurance regulatory authorities.  For the period ending December 31, 2014, the insurance subsidiaries had a 
combined statutory net income of $2.7 million. Access to the capital and surplus within the insurance subsidiaries  is restricted by state regulations.  

Regulatory risk-based capital rules require a specified level of capital depending on the types and quality of investments held, the types of business written 
and the types of liabilities maintained. Depending on the ratio of an insurance company’s surplus to its risk-based capital, the insurance company could be 
subject to various regulatory actions ranging from increased scrutiny to conservatorship. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries risk-based capital ratios at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are significantly above the regulatory action levels.

Note 14—Related Party Transactions

James E. Tait, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, is also a party to a consulting agreement with the Company.  Mr. Tait has been paid $90,000 
for services rendered through December 31, 2014.

In November of 2014, UIA entered into an agreement with Acropolis Investment Management, LLC (“Acropolis”), pursuant to which UIA and Acropolis will 
offer investment adviser and investment management services to sponsors and fiduciaries of defined contribution retirement plans in the labor union market 
place.  Christopher B. Lissner, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, is President of Acropolis.  As of December 31, 2014, there are no defined 
contribution plans under contract for the services noted above.
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Note 15—Discontinued Operations

As previously noted in Note 1, Organization and Basis of Presentation, the Company deconsolidated the assets and liabilities of Ullico Casualty, effective 
March 11, 2013.  As a result of the deconsolidation, discontinued operations results are reported as a separate line item on the consolidated statements of 
income and consolidated statements of cash flows.

Discontinued operations total revenue, pre-tax income, income tax expense and net income for the period ended March 11, 2013 is as follows:

Total revenue $          35.8                    

Pre-tax income                   15.4                           

Income tax expense                       (4.7)

Net income 10.7
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